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PANTHURST  
 

Characteris tic:  F. Bu 

 

Position:   Lat: 51Á 42õ.59N 

Long: 2° 29õ.04W 

   

OS Grid Ref:   SO 667 013 

 

Description:   Double row vertical blue l.e.d. on yellow fibreglass mast. 

 

   

       
       1974           Present day (2020)   

 
Histo ry:   

 

Posts were established at Panthurst Farm in 1894.  When in transit, these provided guidance 

through the channel formed in 1893 by blasting over the Bull Rock.  These posts were unlit, and 

there is no record of their demise.  However, in 1912 a single lit beacon was established. This was 

initially a fixed white oil lamp screened on each side; mains powered fluorescent (blue) lighting was 

installed in April 1974 (above left) in the form of a òSt Andrewõsó cross.  The current vertical 

lighting on a yellow mast (above right) was installed in 1987 following improvements to the flood 

bank. Blue l.e.d. lighting installed April 2020. This is used as a breast light to indicate where vessels 

should commence swinging prior to arrival at Sharpness Dock entrance. 
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BUL L BEACON  

 
Characteristic:  Fl 3s 

 

Position:   Lat: 51Á 41õ.80N 

Long: 2Á 29õ.89W    

 

OS Grid Ref:   ST 657 998 

 

Description:  15m steel lattice mast, white daymark and tide gauge 

 

 

         
  

 Bull Beacon (1980)     Bull Beacon (1988)        Bull Beacon (2005) 

 

 

History:   

 

The beacon was established in 1894 following the levelling of Bull Rocks to 2 feet below Sharpness 

cill height and used to mark the starboard side of the channel cut through Bull Rock.  Gas lighting 

was installed (flashing red) on the chain-stayed wooden pole beacon in 1958 with the gas cylinders 

fitted at the base of the pole.  The pole also carried a tide gauge (wooden battens at 2õ intervals) 

and a radar reflector above the light.    

 
The pole was demolished by a vessel in 1984 and replaced by a self-supporting 15m steel mast 

carrying a mains powered isophase light every 2 seconds.  Polished steel bands were placed at 5-

foot intervals around the column and indicated the depth of water over the rock.  The uppermost 

band was at 41 feet (12.5m) above rock level.  In November 2002, solar-powered lighting (using an 

l.e.d. lantern) was installed, and the light character changed to a flash every 3 seconds. 

 

In August 2005, the beacon structure was changed to a latticework mast carrying a daymark and 

metric tideboard related to the level of Sharpness Dock entrance sill. 
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BERKELEY PILL L EADING  LIGHTS  
 

Characteristic:  F.G 

 

Position:   Front      Back 

 

Lat: 51Á 41õ.99N    Lat: 51Á 41õ.90N   

Long: 2Á 29õ.41W    Long: 2Á 29õ.43W 

 

OS Grid Ref:   SO 662 002     SO 662 001 

 

Description:   8m steel lattice tower with    12m steel lattice tower with  

white lantern house.    white lantern house.  

 

Each lantern fitted with four pairs of l.e.d. strip lights behind green shades 

(2019); white daymark boards beneath each lantern. 

  

    
                                                                   

                 Front Light        Back Light 

   

History:   

 

These were installed in April 1906 to provide a leading line for the channel to Sharpness Dock 

entrance. These original structures were the wood poles fitted with oil lights which had been 

removed from Sheperdine.  Many changes and improvements were made over the years.  Gas 

lighting with a flashing characteristic (67fpm at the rear and 23 fpm at the front) was installed in 
1926.  The steel lattice towers were erected in 1937.  In 1951 the gas system was replaced with a 

battery lighting system and the flashing lights (red) were synchronised in 1953.   

 

Mains power and fluorescent lighting behind red screens was installed in 1964, with the supply 

coming directly from the adjacent power station. However, the supply was terminated in August 

2002 when further decommissioning work was carried out at the power station, and an alternative 

mains supply was laid from a pole at the Environment Agency penstock on Berkeley Pill. Date of 

change to green lighting unknown. 
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BERKELEY PILL LEADING LIGHTS (cont .) 
 

 

In 2008, a refurbished lantern housing (ex-Sheperdine) was installed on the front tower, and the 

old front lantern was in turn refurbished and installed on the rear tower in 2010. The refurbished 

items incorporate handrails which comply with modern health and safety requirements, and rusty, 

perforated sections have been replaced with new metal. 

 

 

 

The photograph at the left shows the oil 

lamp installation (ex-Sheperdine) of the 

front light at Berkeley Pill in the early 

1900s, with light-keeper in attendance 

and a small craft heading upriver in the 

background. 
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CONIGRE L EADING  LIGHTS  

 
Characteristic:  F.Bu     F.Bu 

 

Position:   Front     Back 

   Lat: 51Á 41õ.46N   Lat: 51Á 41õ.49N 

   Long: 2° 30õ.02W    Long: 2Á 29õ.81W 
 

OS Grid Ref:   ST 655 993    ST 657 993 

 

Description:   Front     Back 

 

21m steel lattice mast carrying  29m steel lattice mast carrying two 

two vertically disposed vertically vertically disposed vertically oriented 

oriented blue fluorescents, with blue fluorescents, with orange board 

orange (upper) and white  daymark beneath lights. 

board (lower) daymarks 
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Front Light,with painted square     Back Light 

daymark on wall of building behind 

 

CONIGRE L EADIN G 

LIGHTS (Contd .) 

 
History:   

 

Two fixed white lights were in use at 

Conigre in 1891.  They were used to 

indicate the òlow wayó across the Lydney 

Sand from Guscar Rocks.  A green sector 

showing over the Bull Rock was in place in 

1888.  It is not known when this sector was 

discontinued.  The oil lamps were replaced 

in June 1948 with Londex battery powered 

items which exhibited a flashing 

characteristic; these remained 

unsynchronised until 1953. The construction 

of the nuclear power station at Berkeley led 

in 1960 to the erection of two steel lattice 

towers fitted with mains powered 

fluorescent lighting. Improved daymarks 

were fitted in August 2018. 

 

 

 

 Left: Conigre back light, early 1900s 
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FISHINGHOUSE L EADING  LIGHTS  

 
Characteris tic:  F 

 

Position:   Back light    Front lights  

 

Lat: 51Á 40õ.90N   Lat: 51Á 40õ.98N  

Long: 2Á 31õ.09W   Long: 2Á 31õ.00W  

 
OS Grid Re f:  ST 643 983 

 

Description:   Back light    Front lights  

 

16m Abacus mast, 4 vertical  4m white fibreglass tower, 4 vertical 

white LED strips, orange/white white LED strips, orange & white 

daymarks daymarks.  Additional daymarks on 

seawall in front of light. 
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History:   

A single white light with red sector showing when 

abeam Haywards Rock was in place in 1886.  

Leading lights were established in 1894 to provide a 

line through Bull Rock channel.  The earlier red 

sector was incorporated into the front light.  

Battery powered flashing lights installed in 1948 and 

the flash synchronised in 1953.  Mains powered 

fluorescent lighting (funded as part of an agreement 

with the CEGB relating to the nuclear power station 

at Berkeley) was installed in 1960, when the back 

light timber structure was renewed and the front 

light steel lattice tower installed.  The Abacus back 

mast and fibreglass front tower were installed in 

1985 ð the rear wooden mast had blown down in 

1985. Following comments from pilots that the 

vertical separation between front and rear lights was 

inadequate the height of the back mast was 

extended by 5m in August 2018.  The red sector 

light on the front mast became unnecessary and 

eventually unused as a reference due to the fixed  

(Above: extended mast, August 2018)  beacon at Haywards rock, and so was discontinued 

in June 2023. 

 

      

 

The following photographs show the evolution of the beacons at Fishinghouse between 1894 and 

1985.   The original structures were lit by oil but this was later changed to mains-powered lighting. 
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HAYWARDS ROCK BEACON  
 

Charac teristic:  VQ 

 

Position:   Lat: 51Á 41õ.26N 

Long: 2Á 31õ.11W 

 

OS Grid Ref:   ST 642 988 

 
Description:  North  Cardinal beacon with very quick flashing white light characteristic to 

mark Haywards Rock. 

 

History:  

 

An unlit buoy was first installed 

in 1906. A small flashing beacon 

was installed on the buoy in July 

1956.  A new steel buoy with 

gas lighting was installed in 

1958. Solar powered lighting 

was fitted in 1987.  

 

A grp buoy (right) was installed 

in 1991 and utilised solar panels 

and fittings removed from its 

predecessor. 

 

The highly dynamic tidal regime 

and soft nature of the rock bed 

resulted in continual erosion of 

the rock and considerable wear 

to the mooring chains (shown 

right). Consequently, the rock 

required frequent remedial 

work in the form of concreting 

to avoid loss of or damage to 

                                               the buoy. 

 

This high level of maintenance and the associated risk led to the installation of a 12.5m steel 
beacon at Hayward Rock in June 1999 and the removal of the buoy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pictured left is the original buoy fitted with battery-powered lighting 

and radar reflector. The buoy is now a òfeatureó at the Sharpness picnic 

area. 

 

 

 


